Sy

»

YORK

CITY ©F

N

Vd

COUNCIL

Notice of a public meeting of

Customer and Corporate Services Scrutiny Management
Committee (Calling In)

To: Councillors Crawshaw (Chair), Baker, Hollyer, Hook
(Substitute for ClIr Fenton), Musson, Norman, Orrell,
Pearson and Rowley

Date: Monday, 9 May 2022

Time: 5.30 pm

Venue: The George Hudson Board Room - 1st Floor West
Offices (F045)

AGENDA
1. Declarations of Interest

At this point in the meeting, Members are asked to declare any
disclosable pecuniary interest or other registerable interest they
might have in respect of business on this agenda, if they have
not already done so in advance on the Register of Interests.

Public Participation

At this point in the meeting members of the public who have
registered to speak can do so. Members of the public may speak
on agenda items or on matters within the remit of the committee.

Please note that our registration deadlines have changed to
2 working days before the meeting, in order to facilitate the
management of public participation at our meetings. The
deadline for registering at this meeting is 5:00pm on Thursday,
5 May 2022.

To register to speak please visit
www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings to fill in an online
registration form. If you have any questions about the

www.york.gov.uk


http://www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings

registration form or the meeting, please contact Democratic
Services. Contact details can be found at the foot of this agenda.

Webcasting of Public Meetings

Please note that, subject to available resources, this meeting will
be webcast including any registered public speakers who have
given their permission. The meeting can be viewed live and on
demand at www.york.gov.uk/webcasts.

During coronavirus, we've made some changes to how we're
running council meetings. See our coronavirus updates
(www.york.gov.uk/COVIDDemocracy) for more information on
meetings and decisions.

3. Called-in Item: Review of the "Controlling (Pages 1 - 28)
the Concentration of Houses in Multiple
Occupation" Supplementary Planning
Document 2012 (revised 2014) in response
to the Council Motion of December 2021
To consider the decisions made by the Executive on 21 April
2022 in relation to the above item, which have been called in by
Councillors Warters, Doughty and Kilbane in accordance with the
Council’s Constitution.

A cover report is attached setting out the reasons for the call-in
and the remit and powers of the Customer & Corporate Services
Scrutiny Management Committee (Calling-In) in relation to the
call-in, together with the original report and annexes, and the
decisions of the Executive.

4. Urgent Business
Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the
Local Government Act 1972.

Democratic Services Officer:

Name: Fiona Young
Telephone: 01904 55
E-mail: fiona.young@york.gov.uk


http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts
http://www.york.gov.uk/COVIDDemocracy

For more information about any of the following please
contact the Democratic Services Officer responsible for
servicing this meeting:

Registering to speak

Business of the meeting

Any special arrangements

Copies of reports and

For receiving reports in other formats

Contact details are set out above.

This information can be provided in your own language.
EMEAEMIESIRMEEREISR (cantonese)
g3 ©T AR e o (T (TS SR | (Bengali)

Ta informacja moze by¢ dostarczona w twoim

2 (Polish)
wiasnym jezyku.

Bu bilgiyi kendi dilinizde almaniz miimkiindiir. (Turkish)
e N G Tl (wrw
T (01904) 551550




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda Item 3

COUNCIL

Customer and Corporate Services Scrutiny 9 May 2022
Management Committee (Calling In)

Report of the Director of Governance

Called-in Item: Review of the “Controlling the Concentration of Houses
in Multiple Occupation” Supplementary Planning Document 2012
(revised 2014) in response to the Council Motion of December 2021

Summary

1. This report sets out the reasons for the call-in of the decisions made by
the Executive on 21 April 2022 in respect of the above item. The report
also sets out the powers and role of the Customer and Corporate
Services Scrutiny Management Committee (Calling-In) in dealing with
the call-in.

Background

2. An extract from the Decision Sheet published after the Executive
meeting on 21 April is attached as Annex A to this report. This sets out
the decisions taken on the called-in item. The original report to the
Executive Member, together with its annexes, is attached at Annex B.

3. The decisions have been called in for review by the Customer and
Corporate Services Scrutiny Management Committee (Calling-In) by
Cllrs Warters, Doughty and Kilbane, in accordance with the
Constitutional requirements, for the following reasons:-

“The decision reached last night does not satisfy the will of Full Council
with regard to the motion approved on the 16th December, something of
a constitutional anomaly but also the decision from Executive:

e Does not provide any explanation as to why a review of this HMO
SPD cannot take place alongside and separate from the LP
process to assess best practise policies and thresholds as used by
other local authorities;

eIndicates that the current HMO SPD and its use when assessing
new HMO applications is robust’ when clearly it is not and has not
been for some years now based on planning application



Page 2

determinations and of course the report from the LGSCO.”

Consultation

4. In accordance with the requirements of the Constitution, the calling-in
Members have been invited to attend and/or speak at the Calling-in
meeting, as appropriate.

Options

5.  The following options are available to the CCSMC (Calling-In) in relation
to dealing with this call-in, in accordance with the constitutional and
legal requirements under the Local Government Act 2000:

a) To decide that there are no grounds to make specific
recommendations to the Executive in respect of the decisions
called in. If this option is chosen, the original decisions taken on
the item by the Executive will be confirmed and will take effect
from the date of the CCSMC (Calling-in) meeting; or

b) To make specific recommendations to the Executive on the
decisions called in, in light of the reason given for post-decision
call-in. If this option is chosen, the matter will be considered at a
meeting of Executive (Calling-In).

Analysis

6. Members need to consider the reasons for the call-in and the original
report to the Executive and form a view on whether there is a basis to
make specific recommendations to the Executive in respect of the
decisions called in.

Council Plan

7.  There are no direct implications for this call-in in relation to the delivery
of the Council Plan and its priorities for 2019-23.

Implications

8. There are no known Financial, HR, Legal, Property, Equalities, or Crime
and Disorder implications in relation to handling the call in of the issue
under consideration.



Page 3

Risk Management

9. There are no risk management implications associated with the call in of
this matter.

Recommendations

10. Members are asked to consider the reasons for calling in these decisions
and decide whether they wish to confirm the affected decisions or to
refer them back for reconsideration and make specific recommendations
to the Executive on the decisions called in.

Reason: To enable the called-in matter to be dealt with efficiently and

in accordance with the requirements of the Council’s
Constitution.

Contact Details

Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Dawn Steel Janie Berry

Head of Democratic Services Director of Governance
dawn.steel@york.gov.uk Tel: 01904 555385

Tel: 01904 551030

Report Approved \ Date: 28/4/22

All |V
Wards Affected: All

For further information please contact the author of the report

Annexes

Annex A — Extract from the Decision Sheet produced following the Executive
meeting on 21 April 2022, setting out the decisions made on the called-in
item.

Annex B — Report of the Corporate Director of Place to the Executive
meeting on 21 April 2022.


mailto:dawn.steel@york.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 5

Annex A

Executive
Thursday, 21 April 2022

Decisions

Set out below is a summary of the decisions taken at the Executive
meeting held on Thursday, 21 April 2022. The wording used does not
necessarily reflect the actual wording that will appear in the minutes.

Members are reminded that, should they wish to call in a decision,
notice must be given to Democracy Support Group no later than 4pm
on the second working day after this meeting.

If you have any queries about any matters referred to in this decision
sheet please contact Fiona Young.

Review of the “Controlling the Concentration of Houses in
Multiple Occupation” Supplementary Planning Document
2012 (revised 2014) in response to the Council Motion of
December 2021

Resolved: (i)  That it be confirmed that the current HMO

Reason:

policies are evidence-based, robust and fit for
purpose and that the consideration of a review of the
Local Plan Policy H8 and the HMO SPD be deferred
until such time as the Local Plan is adopted, at
which time the appropriate resources and scope can
be considered as part of the ongoing process of
maintaining an evidence based Local Plan and the
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
requirement for regular Local Plan reviews.

To ensure the Local Plan examination is not put at
risk and to ensure resources are in place to facilitate
a robust evidence base approach to the future
review of the Local Plan and policies.

(i)  That the contents of the report regarding the
recent LGSCO decision and the proposed review of
the Planning team’s enforcement capacity in
conjunction with the future HMO licencing report be
noted.



Reason:

Reason:

Page 6

To ensure that Members are kept up to date and the
commitments made to the LGSCO and the customer
are complete.

(i)  That the contents of the report regarding the
recent ICO decision notice and confirming the nature
of the future publication of HNO data be noted.

To ensure Members are kept up to date with the
council’s statutory data management obligations
regarding its approach to HMO regulation.



Page 7

Annex B
Qi—‘“\" CITY OF
YORK
; COUNCIL
Executive 21 April 2022

Report of the Corporate Director of Place
Portfolio of the Executive Member for Economy and Strategic Planning

Review of the “Controlling the Concentration of Houses in Multiple
Occupation” Supplementary Planning Document 2012 (revised 2014) in
response to the Council Motion of December 2021

Summary

1.

The report responds to the Motion from full Council in December 2021
which asked Executive to consider a review of the Controlling the
Concentration of Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO) Draft
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) 2012 (as amended 2014). It
also requested that officers update concentrations of HMOs annually, at
residential and street levels, and publish this information on both the
Council website and the York Open Data website.

The report identifies implications and legal considerations associated
with undertaking a review of the SPD and potential changes to the policy.
It considers the findings of a recent Local Government and Social Care
Ombudsman (LGSCO) decision and an Information Commissioner’s
Office (ICO) decision notice.

Executive are asked to consider the implications of reviewing the SPD
and any changes to policy in the context of the Council’s Local Plan,
currently being at examination. Executive are also asked to note the
outcomes of the recent decisions from the LGSCO and ICO in relation to
HMOs.

The report relates to powers under planning legislation to manage the
spatial distribution of HMOs and not powers under housing legislation to
improve the management and condition of HMOs. Whilst the planning
system and HMO licensing are two separate regimes, with distinct
functions and objectives in relation to HMOs, how the two regimes work
Is considered as part of the report.



Page 8

Annex B

Recommendations

5.

The Executive is asked to:

1) Confirm that the current HMO policies are evidence based, robust
and fit for purpose and defer the consideration of a review of the
Local Plan Policy H8 and the HMO SPD until such a time as the
Local Plan is adopted. At which time the appropriate resources and
scope can be considered as part of the ongoing process of
maintaining an evidence based Local Plan and the National
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) requirement for regular Local
Plan reviews.

Reason: To ensure the Local Plan examination is not put at risk and
to ensure resources are in place to facilitate a robust evidence base
approach to the future review of the Local Plan and policies.

2) Note the contents of the report regarding the recent LGSCO
decision and the proposed review of the Planning team’s
enforcement capacity in conjunction with the future HMO licencing
report.

Reason: To ensure Members are kept up to date and the
commitments made to the LGSCO and the customer are complete.

3) Note the contents of the report regarding the recent ICO decision
notice and confirm nature of the future publication of HMO data.

Reason: To ensure Members are kept up to date with the Council’'s
Statutory data management obligations regarding it approach to
HMO regulation.

Background

HMO SPD

6.

In broad terms a House in Multiple Occupation or HMO as they are
commonly known, is a house or flat occupied as their main residence by
three or more unrelated people who share a communal kitchen,
bathroom and/or toilet. In planning terms, there are two different types of
HMOs. Between three and six unrelated people, sharing amenities is
class as ‘C4’ or a small HMO. Large HMOs can be defined in broad
terms of consisting of more than six unrelated occupants who share



Page 9

Annex B

amenities and does not fall within any use class and are considered 'sui
generist'.

7. HMOs make an important contribution to York’s housing offer, providing
flexible and affordable accommodation, not just for students but for
young professionals and low and middle-income households who may
be economically inactive or working in low paid jobs.

8. All large HMOQO's require planning permission, while small Class C4
HMO'’s have permitted development rights via the General Permitted
Development Order and could change use between a C3 dwelling house
and a C4 small HMO without the need for express consent from the
Council. Previously the Council considered an evidence base exploring
the spatial distribution and impact of HMOs which indicated that in order
to provide a more even distribution of HMOs in the City, it is necessary to
control the number of Class C4 HMOs within neighbourhoods to ensure
that communities do not become imbalanced. This control was achieved
through an Article 4 Direction, which came into force on 20 April 2012.
The direction covers the main York urban area (see map at Annex 1) and
relates to the change of use of dwelling houses from a family house to a
use class C4 HMO (being a property, which is occupied by between 3
and 6 unrelated individuals as their main or only residence, who share
one or more basic amenities such as a kitchen or bathroom).

9. The Atrticle 4 Direction removes permitted development rights for change
of use from a dwelling house to a use class C4 HMO. Planning
permission is therefore required for such a change of use. The
withdrawal of permitted development rights does not imply that planning
applications will be automatically refused if they are submitted. The
submission of a planning application simply gives the local planning
authority opportunity to consider a proposal against relevant planning
policies, supplementary planning documents (where available) and any
other material planning considerations.

10. Together, Policy H8 of the publication Local Plan (2018) and the
Controlling the Concentration of HMOs SPD provide guidance on how
HMO applications will be determined. The guidance applies to planning
applications for:

e development consisting of a change of use of a building from a
use falling within the Use Class ‘C3’ (a family dwelling house or

1In a planning sense Sui Generis relates to uses that do not fit within the main use class categories.



Page 10

Annex B

flat for example) to Use Class ‘C4’ (small HMO) within the main
urban area under the Article 4 Direction;

e the change of use from Use Class C3 to ‘sui generis’ large HMOs
across the whole Local Authority area;

o flexible permission that allow continuous occupation of a building
as either a dwelling house for a family or an HMO for unrelated
tenants for a period of 10 years without the need for subsequent
planning applications, within Use Class C3 to C3/C4 or C3/Sui
Generis large HMOs across the whole Local Authority area.

11. In recognition that HMOs are a vital source of accommodation within the
City, used by a range of tenants, the aim of the policy framework is to
continue to provide HMO accommodation to meet the City’s housing
needs, but to manage the supply of new HMOs to avoid high
concentrations of this use in an area. Given York’s compact nature and
well connected public transport network it is considered that the
spreading out of HMOs to avoid unsustainable concentrations will still
mean that HMOs will remain highly accessible and a key component of
our housing offer.

12. Policy H8 can be found at Annex 2. A threshold approach forms the
basis of the policy approach, whereby an assessment of the proportion
of households that are HMOs is undertaken within a given area. Whilst
there is no formal definition of what constitutes a balanced community,
there have been attempts to establish what constitutes a large HMO
proportion and the threshold at which a community can be said to be/or
become imbalanced. Useful precedents have been set in a number of
Authorities. For York, through consultation, a threshold of 20% of all
properties being HMOs across a neighbourhood and 10% at street level
have been established as the point at which a community can tip from
balanced to unbalanced.

13. There are three elements to the policy; a threshold assessment at the
neighbourhood level (20%), a threshold assessment at the street level
(10%) and an assessment of residential amenity?. An application can be
refused on any of the criteria, it is not necessary for all three to be
engaged for an application to be refused. The supporting text to Policy
H8 states that the SPD provides guidance on how planning applications
will be determined. The SPD references Policy H8 and the threshold
approach and provides more detailed guidance on how applications will
be determined.

2 A consideration of the ability of the area and the property to absorb an additional HMO.



Page 11

Annex B

14. The Council attaches moderate weight to Policy H8 (in accordance with
the provisions of paragraph 48 of NPPF). The SPD remains a draft until
such a time, as there is an adopted development plan in York. The SPD
was subject to and shaped by a comprehensive 6-week detailed citywide
public consultation. As such, although a ‘draft’ SPD, the document is a
material consideration that is capable of carrying significant weight in
determining planning applications. The Planning Inspectorate at appeal
has recognised this.

15. In assessing change of use planning applications, to capture as many
different types of shared accommodation as possible the Council
currently use the following:

e Council tax records - households made up entirely of students
can seek exemption from Council Tax and the address of each
exempt property is held by the Council. This applies to properties
occupied only by one or more students as either full time or term
time accommodation. Properties falling within ‘Halls of residence’
on campus will not be included, however some accommodation
owned or managed by the universities off campus will be included;

e Licensed HMOs - records from the Council’s Housing team of
those properties requiring an HMO licence will be utilised. These
are those properties that are occupied by five or more persons;

e Properties benefiting from C4 or sui generis HMO planning
consent — in addition to those properties already identified as
having HMO permission, where planning permission is given for a
change of use to C4 HMO or a certificate of lawful development
issued for existing HMOs this will be recorded in the future to build
up a clearer picture of HMO properties; and

e Properties known to the Council to be HMOs - this can be
established through site visits undertaken by the Council’s Housing
team in response to reports from the public for example. Local
knowledge of known HMOs is welcomed where there is
demonstrable evidence that properties are operating as HMOs. If
there is not sufficient evidence, it will be assumed that properties
are not HMOs.

16. These data sets are collated to calculate an estimate of the proportion of
shared households as a percentage of all households. It is considered



Page 12

Annex B

that these sources are robust and will provide a fit for purpose approach
to identifying the numbers and location of HMOs in an area, although it is
accepted that due to the definition of HMO being determined by
occupancy rather than construction the data collection methodology can
always be improved with more resources. The data is analysed to avoid
double counting, for example, identifying where a property may be listed
as a licensed HMO and have sui generis HMO planning consent.

LGSCO Decision

17. A complaint was made to the LGSCO (reference ID 20 006 711) about

18.

19.

20.

the way the Council granted planning permission for an HMO. The
complaint arose due to a failure to maintain the Council’s HMO database
caused by the internal process of information sharing being infrequent
and high vacancy rates in the Strategic Planning Policy team. This led to
an incomplete understanding of the HMO densities within the planning
process.

The LGSCO cannot question whether a Council’s decision is right or
wrong simply because the complainant disagrees with it. They must
consider whether there was fault in the way the decision was reached.
The LGSCO found the Council at fault for delays updating its HMO
database. However, the LGSCO did not find the fault caused the
complainant an injustice, noting the HMO policy is guidance and the
policy itself recognises it is not definitive.

As part of the LGSCO process, the Council identified the need to review
its approach to updating and monitoring the HMO database. The Council
said it would review its approach and review the team’s resources to
enable timely updates of data onto the HMO database. The Council also
said it would also review the HMO database and begin any proportionate
and reasonable action needed to resolve cases where necessary
planning permission is not in place. The LGSCO found this to be positive
and the Council is progressing these agreed actions.

Following the review of the database, officers are content that the
approach to updating and monitoring the HMO database, as set out in
paragraph 5.5 of the HMO SPD, is fit for purpose. Updating the HMO
database in this way will allow for the best approach to identifying the
numbers and location of HMOs in an area when determining HMO
planning applications in accordance with Policy H8. The review has
identified that the Licensing team are now able to share data on licensed
HMOs monthly, rather than quarterly which is what is set out in the Local



21.

22.

23.

Page 13

Annex B

Plan supporting text and SPD. This more frequent update on licensed
HMOs is now in place, with the Strategic Planning Policy team continuing
to work closely with colleagues in Housing to ensure that HMO licences
are now updated monthly. The relevant teams are clear of the process to
be followed and what information is to be shared and when. Executive
are asked to note the revised process with more frequent flow of
information.

As part of the response to the LGSCO, the Council also recognised that
it needed to consider proportionate and reasonable action to resolve
cases where necessary planning permission is not in place. As part of
this consideration the Executive are asked to consider the impending
decision on HMO licensing detailed below.

HMO Licensing

As noted above whilst the Council resolution focused specifically on
planning policy i.e. the spatial distribution element of the City’s HMO.
HMO licensing assists in ensuring that standards are met and that
management arrangements are effective. It therefore has a different but
complementary role to Planning with data from the Licensing regime
providing evidence for the application of Planning Policy H8. The
purpose of Policy H8 and the SPD being not to constrain supply, but to
manage it to avoid high concentrations of this use type in an area.

In March 2021 Executive considered the following recommendations:-
Executive are recommended to:

1) Agree to undertake a citywide, statutory, 10 week consultation on
the potential designation of a targeted Additional Licensing scheme
for HMQ'’s with 3 or 4 occupants within the wards of Hull Road,
Guildhall, Clifton, Fishergate, Heworth, Micklegate, Osbaldwick and
Derwent; and Fulford and Heslington;

2) Support a further report being brought before the Executive following
the conclusion of the consultation to determine whether to designate
an additional licensing scheme.

Reason: To seek to improve HMOs and thereby benefiting:
e tenants by ensuring that homes which are safe and well
managed,
e create a level playing field for all Landlords/agents



24.

25.

26.

27.

Page 14

Annex B

e support stakeholders such as the Fire and Rescue Service,
Police and NHS by improving fire safety, security and
reducing the number of unhealthy homes.

e support our universities and other educational institutions
attract students

e support the wider city businesses and residents by providing
well managed and sustainable housing.

The report considering the outcomes of the consultation and
consideration of the adoption of this enhanced licencing regime and the
necessary resources for enforcement are due for consideration at the
June Executive. Any additional information coming out of an enhanced
licensing regime if adopted, would be in accordance with the Policy H8
and have the potential of an impact on the demand for Planning
Enforcement and over time, officers and members will have to consider
the scale of the issues arising.

ICO Decision Notice and data

Paragraph 16 above identifies the sources of information used for the
purposes of compiling the HMO database and the elements of the ICO
decision notice that relates to making the information publically available.

A complaint was made to the ICO (Case Reference Number: IC-81328-
Z8DO0) in relation to a request for a copy of the HMO database held by
the Council that identifies student HMOs used for the purposes of
planning. Whilst the Council provided some information to the
complainant, it refused to provide details which would reveal the
addresses of student occupied properties, citing sections12(5)(a) - public
safety, and regulation 12(5)(b) - the course of justice, of the EIR. It then
later advised that it was also relying on section 13 - personal data, of the
EIR. The Commissioner’s decision is that the Council is entitled to rely
on section 12(5) (a) of the EIR, when withholding the street addresses of
student HMQO’s. The ICO does not require the Council to take any steps
as a result of the decision notice. However, the Council did offer to
provide the complainant with information, which will provide the number
of student properties by ward area, without allowing for the identification
of specific properties and their occupants.

Since the offer to provide the number of student HMO’s, the Council
Motion on the 215 December 2021 was made. As a result of this, the
Council intends to begin making the addresses of HMO properties
publicly available. Having analysed this further it has been concluded it



28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

Page 15

Annex B

is therefore no longer possible to provide numbers of student HMO’s by
Ward, as this would allow the identification of specific student properties
so will not now be provided. The Council will based on the decisions
made in this report update the complainant according.

For the reasons noted in the ICO’s decision notice, and in accordance
with our HMO planning policies the addresses of those properties on the
HMO database will be published but not the category of the occupants.

Due to the nature of the Policy H8, it is not possible to provide an
indication of the number of HMOs within a street, or neighbourhood area
as defined in the HMO SPD. This is because the calculation is
undertaken on a case-by-case basis with the property location being the
starting point of the calculation. It is possible if Members considered it to
be appropriate, to publish an indicative map of HMO densities by ONS
output area, this could however not be relied on for interpreting the
application of the Council’s planning policies. This exercise has
previously been undertaken but Members are asked to consider if this
should be an ongoing arrangement as this adds value to public
understanding or alternatively Members could consider that this heat
map approach be construed as misleading.

Enforcement and Resources

Having considered the LGSCO decision, the ICO decision, the sources
of data and the HMO licencing regime. The Executive needs to consider
the necessary resources, the approach to planning and licensing
enforcement and the proportionality, recognising the Council’s planning
obligations are to facilitate development and HMO licensing regulations
are focused on the quality of accommodation.

Currently there are no dedicated resources within the Planning
Enforcement team looking at HMOs and this enforcement work forms
part of the Planning Enforcement backlog that is reviewed, risk assessed
and prioritised by the Planning Enforcement team and has been subject
to multiple Scrutiny meetings over recent years and has received
additional investment by the Council. In the vast majority of the Article 4
area, as HMO densities are low, these HMOs will be considered a low
priority. It should be noted that the Planning Enforcement team is also
constrained by the national shortage of Planning officers.

In respect of enforcement, both the Housing Licensing regime and
planning regimes work on the principals of inform, educate and then



33.

Page 16

Annex B

enforcement as a last resort. In the majority of circumstances, both
regimes currently result in no enforcement action and actions by owners
to achieve compliance with the regulatory regime which in itself has to be
proportionate. In that regard, both regimes are successfully achieving
regulatory compliance in most cases with no burden upon the Courts and
minimising the impact on the public purse.

However, regulation has a clear role and the consideration of the
reduced thresholds for HMO licencing is a good example of evidence
driven policy review in part arising from the poor quality of HMO
provision found when the 2018 Housing Act extended the definition of a
large HMO. However if adopted this regime will need resourcing.

Council Motion

34.

Council motion was approved on 16 December 2021 resolving that
Executive consider initiating, without delay, a review of the HMO SPD,
with a view to halving the acceptable percentage thresholds to 10% at
neighbourhood level and 5% at street level. The motion also commits
Council officers to updating concentrations of HMOs across the Article 4
Direction area annually, at residential and street levels, by providing up
to date data on both the Council website and the York Open Data
website.

Consultation

35.

Policy H8 of the publication Local Plan and the draft HMO SPD have
been subject to extensive and comprehensive consultation.

Options

36.

37.

The following options are available for Members to consider.

Option 1

To instigate a review of the Policy H8 within the Local Plan and
reconsider the role that HMO provision makes to deliver the City’s
Housing need.

a) Ask the Planning Inspectorate Inspectors to suspend the current
Local Plan Examinations and consider if the Council’s proposals
to amend Policy H8 would be a main modification and
subsequently would this be considered a withdrawal of the plan.



38.

Page 17

Annex B

b) Provide additional resource as necessary for the Housing and
Strategic Planning Policy team to re start the Local Plan process
and evidence gathering as we would fall under a new regulatory
regime if the plan is considered withdrawn.

Option 2

Confirm the Council’s view that its Local Plan policies are robust and fit
for purpose, noting the actions taken in response to the LGSCO
decision, maintain the current approach to collecting information on
known HMOs. Consider planning enforcement implications of the
Licensing regime in June and consider additional resources to assist with
Planning Enforcement capacity. Note the ICO decision that the Council
Is correctly protecting the personal information of students by not
publishing HMO data on a detailed basis to avoid identification of
individuals with common characteristics.

Analysis

39.

40.

Option 1
Consideration of a review into the HMO SPD

The issue of reviewing the HMO SPD, and any resultant change to policy
such as the thresholds, cannot be discussed in isolation, it has to be set
within the context of the emerging Local Plan. This is because an SPD
must (amongst other things) not contain statements that amount to
‘development management policies which are intended to guide the
determination of applications for planning permission.” Such statements
are required to be in a Local Plan and not within an SPD.2 It is the Local
Plan at Policy H8 that sets the principle policy approach to HMOs, not
the SPD. An SPD does not have the power to change thresholds set in
the Local Plan.

Government policy set out in the National Planning Policy Framework
(NPPF) states that a Local Planning Authority (LPA) can use a
Supplementary Planning Document to add further detail to policies that
are in the development plan. It adds that the SPD can be used to provide
further guidance for developers on particular issues and are capable of

3 The Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 govern the
contents and preparation of SPDs.



41.

42.

43.

Page 18

Annex B

being a material consideration in planning decision. National Planning
Practice Guidance explains that SPDs should build upon and provide
advice that is more detailed or guidance on policies within adopted local
plans; and are a material consideration in decision-making. However, as
they do not form part of the core development plan, they cannot
introduce new planning policies.

Given that the role of an SPD is to add details to policies at a higher
level, the HMO SPD cannot override or change Policy H8. Rather the
SPD should support the implementation of Policy H8. As Policy H8
references a threshold, a revised SPD that references a different
threshold would be at risk of demonstrating new levels of control beyond
that prescribed by policy and of breaching the 2012 Regulations. Given
that, the Local Plan is now at examination stage, the only way the
thresholds in Policy H8 (and the draft SPD) can be changed is through a
proposed modification or if the Inspectors requests a change. Post
adoption of the Local Plan, the policy could be changed through a review
of the plan. There is therefore a significant risk that a review and
consultation of the HMO SPD and policy approach whilst the Local Plan
is under examination could undermine the Council’s position potentially
result in a request / instruction for withdrawal by the Inspector on the
basis at the hearings that Policy H8 is un-sound.

Therefore, due to the potential for the Local Plan process to fail whilst a
review of policy as proposed by full Council is a decision Executive could
take, officers recommend that a review of the Policy H8 and HMO SPD is
undertaken in the context of an adopted Local Plan and considered as
part of a review of the plan. It should not be undertaken at the current
time in isolation of the rest of the plan, as there is a significant risk that it
will undermine the Local Plan integrity and therefore the examination.

A future review of the percentage thresholds (referenced in the SPD and
Policy H8) would involve an evidence-based consideration as to whether
the approach is having the desired effect in relation to concentrations of
HMOs and whether the thresholds are robust. This might include a
review of planning decisions, appeal decisions and enforcement cases
and meetings with residents groups, Councillors, landlords, agents and
universities. The evidence would inform any subsequent citywide
consultation on options for potential adjustments to the HMO
concentration thresholds and the area to which the Article 4 Direction
applies. Members will need to consider the resource implications and the
facts on the ground of this option at the time.



44.

45.

46.

47.

Page 19

Annex B

Option 2

Confirm that the current HMO policies are evidence based, robust and fit
for purpose and that the Council’s existing Local Plan Policy H8 and
HMO SPD manages the concentrations of HMOS and have restricted
HMOs in the City where large concentrations of HMOs exist. The
proposals due for consideration by Executive in June on additional
licensing will provide further regulation of quality in those parts of the City
with the highest densities of HMO. Good regulation of quality and
guidance as to quantity has encouraged a significant investment by
landowners and developers in the City to provide purpose built
accommodation for students who are the largest driver of HMO demand
in the City.

The current information gathering for the HMO planning regime is robust
and provides sufficient indicative data as to the quantum of HMOs within
a street and a neighbourhood for Members and officers to give a
proportionate weight to planning applications when considered. To note
that in light of the specific nature of the HMO density calculation and the
changing nature of property occupation therefore classification as an
HMO the density data published at a City level by output area does not
reflect Council planning policy and cannot be used in considering
planning applications. Members may wish to consider if this information
should continue to be published.

The current enforcement regime in respect of planning enforcement
demand as a whole is proportionate and reflects HMO enforcement
priority within the overall planning enforcement function at any one time.
HMO quality, through licencing will be considered in the June Executive
report and potential short term impacts of any increased planning
enforcement activity as a consequence within the wards with the highest
HMO densities will also be considered. Members may wish to consider
more generally, additional resources to bolster Planning Enforcement as
part of the annual budget process, but will need to recognise as with
many Council services currently budget is not the only factor and wage
inflation in the economy and skills shortages are having a dramatic
impact on resourcing teams with niche skills.

Ongoing support of purpose built student accommodation by the Council
and the Universities is a positive proactive response to meeting students’
needs and in line with NPPF and the Local Plan. Both Universities are
exploring opportunities for more collaborative working on bringing



Page 20

Annex B

forward such developments and Council Planning and Regeneration
officers are responding positively in accordance with Council policies.

48. In summary, Option 2 as detailed below.

a.

To confirm that the Local Plan Policy H8 and SPD are sound and
should be considered as part of a future Local Plan review alongside
all other Local Plan Policies;

Recognise the HMO database is fit for purpose to give context to
guidance on one element of planning considerations;

To consider potential additional Planning resources in light of the
June HMO licensing considerations;

To consider overall Planning Enforcement resources as part of the
annual budget process.

To endorse a proactive approach with both Universities to bring
forward purpose built student accommodation in accordance with
the policies of the submitted Local Plan.

Council Plan

49. The proposals in this report contribute to the key outcomes in the 2019-
23 Council Plan Making History, Building Communities particularly
relating to creating homes and world-class infrastructure.

Implications

50. The following implications have been considered within the report.

Financial — There are no significant financial implications associated
with the report. The recommendations can all be delivered within
current budgetary allocations.

Human Resources (HR) - there are no implications.

One Planet Council / Equalities — no implication associated with the
recommendations of this report. If however, a review of Policy is
proposed in the future, it would require all the appropriate impact
assessments to be undertake associated with a new Local plan being
developed.

Legal — Legal comments are included in the body of the report.
Crime and Disorder — there are no implications.



Page 21

Annex B

. Information Technology (IT) — there are no implications.
« Property — there are no implications.
« Other —there are no implications.

Risk Management

51. There are significant financial and reputation risks with Options 1 and 2
as identified in the report.

Contact Details
Author: Chief Officer Responsible for the report:
Neil Ferris

Corporate Director of Place
Tel No. 01904 551448

Report J |Date 7 April 2022
Co-authors: Approved

Tracey Carter
Ruth Abbott
Lorraine Lunt

Specialist Implications Officer(s) List information for all

Financial:- Legal:-

Patrick Looker Frances Harrison / Sandra Branigan
Head of Service Finance Head of Legal Services

Tel No. 01904 551633 Tel No. 01904 551988

Wards Affected: All [V

For further information please contact the author of the report
Background Papers:

Draft Controlling the Concentration of Houses in Multiple Occupation
Supplementary Planning Document (approved 2012, as amended 2014)

Minutes of the Meeting of the City of York Council held remotely on Thursday,
16 December 2021 (see item 48)



https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/2867/houses-in-multiple-occupation-draft-spd
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/file/2867/houses-in-multiple-occupation-draft-spd
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/documents/g12806/Printed%20minutes%20Thursday%2016-Dec-2021%2018.30%20Council.pdf?T=1
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/documents/g12806/Printed%20minutes%20Thursday%2016-Dec-2021%2018.30%20Council.pdf?T=1
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/documents/g12806/Printed%20minutes%20Thursday%2016-Dec-2021%2018.30%20Council.pdf?T=1

Page 22

Annex B

LGSCO decision
https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/planning/planning-applications/20-006-711

ICO decision

https://icosearch.ico.org.uk/s/redirect?collection=ico-
meta&url=https%3A%2F%2Fico.org.uk%2Fmedia%2Faction-weve-
taken%2Fdecision-notices%2F2022%2F4019612%2Fic-81328-
28d0.pdf&auth=W%2BDpV%2Be7KXOQfw7S%2FWrm5JQ&profile=decisions&
rank=2&qgquery=%21padrenull+%7CpublicAuthority%3A%22%24%2B%2B+Cit
y+of+York+Council+%24%2B%2B%22

Annexes

Annex 1: Article 4 Direction Map
Annex 2: Local Plan Extract Policy H8

List of Abbreviations Used in this Report

HMO — House in Multiple Occupation

ICO — Information Commissioner’s Office

LGSCO - Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman
LPA - Local Planning Authority

NPPF — National Planning Policy Framework

SPD — Supplementary Planning Document


https://www.lgo.org.uk/decisions/planning/planning-applications/20-006-711
https://icosearch.ico.org.uk/s/redirect?collection=ico-meta&url=https%3A%2F%2Fico.org.uk%2Fmedia%2Faction-weve-taken%2Fdecision-notices%2F2022%2F4019612%2Fic-81328-z8d0.pdf&auth=W%2BDpV%2Be7KXQfw7S%2FWrm5JQ&profile=decisions&rank=2&query=%21padrenull+%7CpublicAuthority%3A%22%24%2B%2B+City+of+York+Council+%24%2B%2B%22
https://icosearch.ico.org.uk/s/redirect?collection=ico-meta&url=https%3A%2F%2Fico.org.uk%2Fmedia%2Faction-weve-taken%2Fdecision-notices%2F2022%2F4019612%2Fic-81328-z8d0.pdf&auth=W%2BDpV%2Be7KXQfw7S%2FWrm5JQ&profile=decisions&rank=2&query=%21padrenull+%7CpublicAuthority%3A%22%24%2B%2B+City+of+York+Council+%24%2B%2B%22
https://icosearch.ico.org.uk/s/redirect?collection=ico-meta&url=https%3A%2F%2Fico.org.uk%2Fmedia%2Faction-weve-taken%2Fdecision-notices%2F2022%2F4019612%2Fic-81328-z8d0.pdf&auth=W%2BDpV%2Be7KXQfw7S%2FWrm5JQ&profile=decisions&rank=2&query=%21padrenull+%7CpublicAuthority%3A%22%24%2B%2B+City+of+York+Council+%24%2B%2B%22
https://icosearch.ico.org.uk/s/redirect?collection=ico-meta&url=https%3A%2F%2Fico.org.uk%2Fmedia%2Faction-weve-taken%2Fdecision-notices%2F2022%2F4019612%2Fic-81328-z8d0.pdf&auth=W%2BDpV%2Be7KXQfw7S%2FWrm5JQ&profile=decisions&rank=2&query=%21padrenull+%7CpublicAuthority%3A%22%24%2B%2B+City+of+York+Council+%24%2B%2B%22
https://icosearch.ico.org.uk/s/redirect?collection=ico-meta&url=https%3A%2F%2Fico.org.uk%2Fmedia%2Faction-weve-taken%2Fdecision-notices%2F2022%2F4019612%2Fic-81328-z8d0.pdf&auth=W%2BDpV%2Be7KXQfw7S%2FWrm5JQ&profile=decisions&rank=2&query=%21padrenull+%7CpublicAuthority%3A%22%24%2B%2B+City+of+York+Council+%24%2B%2B%22
https://icosearch.ico.org.uk/s/redirect?collection=ico-meta&url=https%3A%2F%2Fico.org.uk%2Fmedia%2Faction-weve-taken%2Fdecision-notices%2F2022%2F4019612%2Fic-81328-z8d0.pdf&auth=W%2BDpV%2Be7KXQfw7S%2FWrm5JQ&profile=decisions&rank=2&query=%21padrenull+%7CpublicAuthority%3A%22%24%2B%2B+City+of+York+Council+%24%2B%2B%22

7w e 1 i 71t A T\ -1 e AN ! \ T ~ /¥ Crosglands Lane

Plan to Define the Extent of

TR I ool TN s 1 N L Ed I NANANS Y My 7N\ Skelt ; A Cal N
elton > A St Catherines
al 2 St Catherines Cottages
Q Holse “\
Ay

o F:
_— = o
( [ | [ | S AN ' The Brecks V : i @ ‘
2 KNP “ﬁ 3‘:‘ \ @ Bree T‘"wnnAM DR
\ & ‘ SR —_
v EE 1 % A Wigginton
-~ G AL X ‘ R B S \ £ / Galtres
2\ v - *\ Farm
'3 —@\ = [ \ y E CLOSE ‘ —
School
8! -
; i)
»’ ) ‘/‘\‘%/3“ AN —
o YN 3
(& T R A 20N

Nova Scotia \}
Plantation

Wisker

oo
" Huntington North Moor

Nursery

K
\A

\E

Gl Old Carli

Farm

Carlton\HiIIs/

Middleletts

Moar End

Turbaries

North Lane
Gard
Bracksnhill ardens ¢4
Q

Ley Lands

STOCKTON:ON

o

Path NORTH LANE

THE-FOREST.CP

Skelton

Plantation

x]

M O1OMS 10T

Banks

NEW-EARSWICK:

2
kY &
A & H SOUTH [DOWN_ROAD
A [ H =i C]
3 ) oo 16m |
o & Carr Banks
%
I
S
? : — == JeteE
’ ;‘”.“ Hall Farm F Lp'xxﬁ} W2 Gz
y % ¢
RSN Brecks Field Houee ) E/ g
’\’\‘s’o‘ \ N ol = . —ZAA0 2
0’0"”’ oA i \Z0 Schaol Sahe 4 - 2
Skelton % RO L7 Clifton 7\ = ¢ a %z
Nurseries @q’o "““a Prie Gate { 7 7 e
\y ;P\‘\ # | / o —Eﬁ &
o, { ]
Overton RS % SAALT 2 i = 3 ] iest's C
% AN P T} Priest’s Closes 2
(S 4,"&'@ 3““ | = 4 { Golf Course T
% RIAO FH / J
59 e ' H g
SR B ! 5 ’
; ]
1

GO
<
>
S
5

5 N Brecks Wood

” ) - ==
e Foll RS \ L %5 o o
ly \ b ) i
& Bridge 1 Rawecliffe Moor T AVENUE

AN
\\
‘ O
AN
AN \\
N N,
Found Hills N
\ \

West
Huntington

4
/

\\‘\Z'go‘, /\“/
Ry,

Poplar
Plantation Kettlestring o \ —
Farm Oy et
Sewage Works 3, =

Fairfield . @;, 9 \_F T e

Manor ) ) West|Huntington ¢ o) Tofts
Hotel Sty Whitehall [\ F =y Outhall

P - \_ Grarige A o
N A 2,
55 o Lane

<y,

Bull Commercial

S

16m

70
ft;'é?,:“’

Racreation
Ground

New

Cher\ry Tree
Farm

-~ Clifto:Moor

Skelion { Industrial Estate 2> Rk Y - Playi p
Bridge \~~ et “6 ' aying 7
e v . ‘ Copbing Farm Earswmkl Foia N &0

! ,"Trai)/Csl',’ .

O s it i Figgery
Kétiléstring South 2V eX [
Farm y: — ]
Willow Tree Path _
Grange 2 & -
) . s
27 wokdiam Clifton & y
SN Moor Bootham Stray AE,
3 =
. < R — . Stone Riggs Brock Field
\ 7o Bootham 14m L S 2pH 7
D g Stray . 57 &
] b RN \ & . \/’ Motel
- > St /,
NS ~ESANE . oo [
Ouse Moor \ \ \ Clifton'\Moor 14 . < Sports Ground POY Stone Riggs
QOuse Moor X 2 A
o P'ﬂ]
Yo % JOCKEY LANE ~
) s * . Poplar { N Golden
9 § fuF Acres
’ * f i‘ugte:‘r:/ee —[BADDLERS
( i
ROMAN . 4 )
CAMP .. Poplar £ ) O Brock Field
N %) & i V,&* =
£ &
}\ P g ) Sycamare 4 2 AN ]
) B . h \05 4
2 % ) & Lock - Rugby League
P , & (dis) Football Ground|
4 Bootham . e
> Stray 7" Huntington
Community Bootham Stray ‘ Genge | === Mount <
Centre \/ ~ ~ . g v Pleasant ¢
s ~ 5
% '3; ¥ J.L”"ir &7 NVAEIN S;;;mure' 74 Moorlyn Westfield Cottage e
o e SR TS f A ¥ \\\ Camp Site e Sycamore//,,
Playing Field ‘({\,‘ Y %) e F N dis) 14m /;)4- "
| 2, \$> & NG A AR /!
2N & 5 - . i i . Stockton West Moor _
s N ) s i Playing Field .
rita RGN . /i Huntington So - Rudcarr Gate
L PNRES 7 Co Const By’ N, ;
[ % ’// e PUEN S LS Y 1(50“ B or Primrose p
< v o 7t [ Park 8cRide I~
- :’u 2 ¥ . - 7 Cem CarPark iy 'l%
1= /| %4 b i ¢ \\ Pav = 1\ =D Y 1 2
- 7 y N TP 1 N L ! N
4 I Smra )
N S P ¥ . i . S 2
C @ Allotment il i ] G OVE A\ -\ A v
% Gardens ] . Allot y Hl NEY G y A
N \\\\P Fe TN i i A (G | Rugby Footbal el o 7' cortags Qlebe B
. M W g TOoun: 5 -ar,
\\ SF'TgII;S Mill Field 2 W\ é}fv’ ;’Q\ I : iDA\B -arm
\ A 2 &7 "é e S o I,I' * 18mS=e S Pr_’ "T-\ ; SN > ‘/
West Field iy \Trading NI Path gttt i — Coocd Ry i BEoN O = 5 AN \’
X Estate [ATRRRARA e i 1 T Milie Crux ¢ G e = 9 S
o7 1 _Bootham & =] i,/ JnBungalow 5 e Yearsley Grove by e\ Red Carr
Up\per ?3/ £l IIlStray Gates 1 gla(,rt‘jr:ﬁgt B Primary School B! 03 Chow 7 \\ Cottage
Paoppleton& P s s A Deng /& N
sl W 2 O T 2 Thornfield Farm i %N\ )
> . 2 _ = Playing ! - ¥ Carr Goit
=\ Millfield 7 ). a Field Bridge
NLZA p VPR > 38 Brownhills
P & ¢ Farm
< 2, TS >
=
Ry . g ] B
__:i ’, "}: / -0; 12@ : %O %’amble i+,
—_ p ottage
S 2 d P § SN é D SR S Stockton Lane 14m
il 9 s BS SN 23 Nurseries
— % v
>\ fo, 80y LLTRERR) %O MIDDE s
L ST e POZAS, I Han ave Rugby Football ~
Fof A S y Ground Lynden
7 S [ L N 2 O\ Lea /¥
Vy end S Mast'g> . A,
O N
] § b Playing \ G 3 =
g R & . Field \ N\
i S; A o 5 Sugar
D 3 AR eReoy / . S
% Fiold : N £ ;
Wei N 77 o, Farfield Farm
eir N O
Station . o 2 st
c . TN N~ SRR A A TRSRGDS N S N e Em T L T e LRES o NN TN, A D S, Playi
L7 = ying
4 Red Lion v R 7\ N B AT Y, Wearsiey N\ 2 Field o
N . 2, ANE Trarfsforiner ), Biidoe > L5 A Murton Moor
AES - Red Lion Nursery ) 2 359 Station SNy DR > B 5, 2
Bridge Z i oK Trading > NL) o TR B RS N \ Mo
> o e, X p - i < et D
N iy o Estate\ Pavilion ’f:}—imll X ‘“7 AT AHIILII AL N ST TN S e VO SE N WSRO e A A S N A P DU EORRSeREA ML N Y o N AN NN LY TN 3\
v e = = = A ml e e e e e e TR ey~ S ORGSO WOACAN N QAL A DY s XD Y OSSOV A WOABNTRE e N0/ o\ vyt SN e N
R ~ - \& "7 School et I oo
o \\\\\ N Y ‘,f’ \ ° 5 2N 3.‘) Sports Ground A /" £ F\4 STURDEE GRR £ 2
) A h s 7 J = -
# N 74 . C > o D v~ ,A“Q) School Q/," 3 4”§, H 13m =1
& Auurssry 4 . S NN pd P D Pavilion =2 Pay 7 7 Clift Q{/f,,"}}"b‘.‘/ SN St ol | [ o Club
~ N EZ" < ? E oO WO o N N Cottages|l, (" Pav D»r’//@F'av Nns A - imon ‘ks"/// 1'171 N e e PR WAY = U | House %
hed H Q < Sy CNY , SN o\ S ES ) "/'” &7 SSTAShvILE NI i'", 3 P
<f T N 4 3 ", AT \ % v AL < f Club Y > (0}/1 14m: 4 EST > i [ETWOLS ism
17 N / Pr 4R \ . Ve SN, Cricket W House Sy NG \ 1 ==1 Oy
18m 7 A %) 7 Park Side v 7 - SN Ground N\ RS S o) =4 ol vf'?":\
~ L Cottage oV ~ N Pav ) 2 kS Ly N 8
4 o - S\ Mo Clifton Park % 2 %) 51 . et
A 3 g . o y < = RSt
(o} Sports Ground i .\ S\ % (Sports Ground) 4¢P & N = R W
[ ~ 3 P Villa Skelton ~ . P V& <y SS]: iy
-5 Oy ~ G S Clifton\Ings ¢ N, 7 < g 4 = Bl
> S~ ~& Cou Junction )\ * N\ T I g ! S, [ N % == o Tos
(14s / A - ~ = 3
£ SO o = o
~. ' = 5
o & N 5 TOUNTAYRE_STReET == &
. A i ==
Ol -~/ o A A E & =\
The Gardens 5/ =5 7 2 N %
(I~ FFo) ) \, ARD.
s ~ , 7oA < o Z
) -~ & S ko ) .
R RN S e ] $ Heworth
Wheatlands /S A School \\ el s SR04 v The Yews
House 2 afi - sz;-. \\l\ Y HorrF\’esT(ead =
=/ ar| >
N Wheat Lands &, IS S BN 2O SN g -
Pear Tree =51 & 2y 21
Farm ¢ ol 5> < y | 3 Q
. . 5] (P Hempland \ | = 13m
Northminster Business ] éﬂg; Primary School\!l A
A . \ Ag)pletree P .Ap I
e .« * ottage * ple .
E . i ° Tree =T Cottage Briar Dene
= Lt A 4 AN Farm The Sf:k;?;s s
) . Cottage o
N . Playing . , The Gard
N Clifton Brldéel Field 5 N Sy e Gardens
E
= A
Osk Wood & Pav Hospl
et Farm “ahT/
k 2| Sports \{
Trac = Ground \/Z
o] 4
3| /
21m 4 VA
Sports 4 carky 4
= (VA Park&Gf 7 \ .
- Veeing Sroone i OSBALDWICK Warehous Thorntree Field
o 3 i S /
Teack ) R\ [/ (disused) o " ' Lo K N \
T North Field N P08l . Boat
Lo N
Knapton Moor R — ’ N \HOL:T; o A Bath S CP
e R eor 121 Ou'se Acres ™ Nguwee T
¢ e ; 7 hd N e
ss======X == 7 X o Applefields
= 4 s O School
[[] Huntsham L
Farm e"'@ = ‘\‘Deanery" % Sewage Vel
R 2 Garden o Works y o iledm_ere
o rossin,
N & Y A [® Caravan ’ "
W w Lib (2 e \ z Site B
> = B i Y/___ 2 sch D Bumnholme % 13 \ Osbaldwick A
< 2 = % 2. : i A
/// ) NEe o // Severu\ss 7 Dean's)y E Naier Community College' \\ . i T Road Crossing A\
= ) m Bridge T > TRy \ angton . %, A
//// 0@& e : % ')%' PR \<\\\\\\\< ~ “\ \ Housa an\\ed “a“wa\l \ s
17m 2% b=l 5%l ) 2 - \ 3 piem
= X \ & \ -
a i ‘: o % “\xﬁ e ¢ o Mast = \\ N &
2l i R o 7\ % A= 7 Gell's™ &
Underpass N kAR, St Aelred's RC % ] - - \ Farm & N
e = S\ Primary School * Grid . - \ —— $ Allotment
& 5 SHEX Cottage © \ Gardens
e / ! % ¥ = | D) \wetks
<, ) S ofig Scarboro o Z== \ <
) =
& Knapton % H = 2 %. N 7 4 S % idge SRR N axim Z2E = \ \ M A X, 14m Thorntree
AR = I o e R 2 e S Hill Farm
8’ 4 1 L2 v I Tomwer N % FEEE BS
& @57 ] [ — 3 Siden] L > b7 k) S <4 . Dffides 4/ \\ (6—7 T
oA i a 3 % National > A L Lib; =
et e NN Lendsi it e %S pIosa Q o _
< i g“ & R N\ Museum Bridge ) i 2 X Uiy gy o T T Y Oy T ¥ S, Close \ Thorn Hill PN Undergate Field
5 It ‘Works [WaE7 N\ 7 S T =s s T = D %,
2 ~ml 5 b \I f b ) Msn{lﬁb/ < - \\ﬂa €l 'f““(l&f&uu, /;_//F= N P! _==‘_ AT Cyelewsy, O ﬁ% Holly Tree
3 o L2 5 Y LANDER CLoer ('\ - LI e =X o, C i iz EI Sub 513, = = = Farm % &\ House
L a AN Z> i O i (Paths\, . Q) TVENUE
[l Raitvay 2 . @\‘\ &l S 3 Hall 3 \ e Y /\\‘ = L;':"\ 2ol NE ~ 3
e Museu‘“ 73 S ‘J/)l Y &f\ 3 . ‘ L f - Y ‘o N g
b o PR QP G \ t i
Lriohy > =] i N = 4 «\o“ > 2 X =\ Mast __Recycling _ 3
NE BECKFIEL PLA E , 745 War Moml, N '?u\/\ {)—egtre == - 2 L~ s 7 QQ
p N “ I V ) /) -
, : GV L TPAND : /< EBVRRGVMSST 4 2
. A .
Low Field 5 e = i /-;G& feasa b & TROMAN LEGIONARY " 3 * Giimston
A S €T ] Lodge
g Station 9‘7’ /\\ s SEXANDORA nl--ngTﬁES\zS > * o g
S — k== H N % kN IAY X
| IES A P El Sub 2 G 1N
4 G ;ff 52 \ Sta o\ N Meadowville
=) FELLBROBK 7 RUNEWICK AvE b 7 \ 3% G\ \8 =
é" 5 AS [f/ A Pri o} VAEE ?\ Mast W& - >
rimary NG - RN By
P Ex ! Tol'Ex Schog] ﬁi\)““i\“\“‘y N\ N QX8 W coneL e ;
. Works [ iy ‘ O N\ ) st o
" ] ih' L = AR N ANE Grimston
Holgate LS >, A § \ NN 58S TR ™
E‘! o Junction ARTHUR STREET 8 = e \ 3 \\§\0/>9/‘\ =6 TN 1 Bingley House
DA S i AN_C ) \ & ; :
4 3 HERBERT = | | [ HE| TS Ee 5 b AN .4\ Grimston Bar
i i) = Q= {5 =) N el & R~ guhatk BURidd 3
e 5| HH fea| ™ = 2 i -S\ 3 CanPaik L b> 2%
(8! 5| HH =l 2 " 5 e b % ¥, // e N
"lh1E | o [z . cn] 3 WA S > 5 ¢ e
mli= e b R =l e RIEHE R = \\\\\ \({Sk.«)’ )\//f}(x;\ W Bungalow
= 2
Tt =| o) 2 T N2 NN C o g
WRENCE STREET < X v NN NS
- o Cad
7 H iy — Y j T Warki
Whinjie Aad e — W 2 orkings
Hnpey v oon S ) _ T8 TP W \» (disused)
Figlds ~ PARRGEEFT ‘ SIS P ‘ TARBURGH T Q\)\ e
J Leisure GARDENS L~ 1 - A CO0(ONPPATE A \
/ gl Py | \EREEEF T 78 . . Most £ <
] y - 3 l o ) - oS AN o] Kimberlow Hill ™~ .
N Aﬂg‘t/Gdns T School ¢ JAVIES B o T e "::ll New Field
o o A TOP =) BY_ AVENUE i o & 2
. o]
X & M i A 3,
X P E ) w 5 %
— E o e L K
D 5 % School S 4/: v/ PLACE
- B NUESFRY Y i — = S Tl Fetic e -3 °
| By i [l i IR I s “~1PwW ) J o/
% NETE | > Sch ] 901 =R\ ‘i [NEWLAND FARK ]
| - AN _AVENUE N 01 Fields /
3 i " i 7
N IS ARROW HILL hdger Hill / \ 7 _
o R i NNt N0y e
5 Allot Gdns & A r El (=) =l Primary N
&7 ! It o
" v 2/~ 2 GEOVE
S 1 &
X 11y & i i
< A ¥ T Lo L > N i! dite off|] 1 [ | ==
N A N¢ & == d 2 H Subway =
\ GRANGE_LANE \ . ST N il &, = . i /
Grangs BS 2 West Field 2 o ;g“\‘ ey Ground FoWToN i ) X RSwntres T
. st e ARowni &
Cottage / Bachelor Hil ;\f“i'\\\{\\\\‘)\‘ e i ek ] T Patk [
1 ST > i PW 20 e fIf 0
School ; an ‘ \\}\‘\‘9 > 8 MOORGA] i B & .
/ ~ PAL 2 \\"s\eg "’\’!',4 ; ~ -—Hi—- LT s - Ie/megthN ,,/'pe i
= ke i =1 = /i g
Acomb /A VSN 5 S % ’\"\\\‘\‘\\\%““% 0 { / //l/ y
Grange s T A/ 8] \ \\ﬂ\g Patpy ST CEORgE> al FR/
- S = Vg‘}' 5 ] ’ y - 7 Allotment
A\ . z
2 ’ = AS 2 -"\‘ ! Schoolg'andgy 5 - | Gardens
Mast s G, 0 \ 'Communify Ce“ntre"’a?ﬂﬂﬁ- N = S z 2h - Nurseries
gz < 0 ’ Jy Ceqtre” 1 % T o E] ARNDAIE STRPET -
e & @ \ ¥ A X == \ ’
== g % y = . 5 Y N e 7
oo & ’ : BELMI=S : ST he Univarsity~L/ Nl .
& (p@ _________ Bl = LMA TERR . FANN m of York | - L S Nt
z & N N ~ 14m ; =
TSI LN AW A BIA RN D00 3 Cenre 2o, SO WIR| BEEETBIINSEERSS AUl &S N 5 fetr~——a ) Z | @ - Weir LY - N Playing Church Lar
5 J0LT 050“% P = . FRANCES STREET > T l/ \\9* e \\fd‘ Pt A Field ~_ Lord Deramore’s F
Broadlane / W25\ Playing Field ~ & 7 = s A ,~ % Primary Sghool
= 7
Farm 7 AR AMBROSE SraErT — 1OENLOCK TERR 0 / \ 4 N o,
) 7 =5 18m AT 1 /e N School
3 SOUTH BARK A\ y ORDNANCE L ANE Y, \ & ~House
THE REEVEG P @ ] Sl \V
" ES TREEL pEEEY = L \
/ % Bémﬁ%g . I —_’-F-)J § 5 TA Canfra| T
1 > [an] )
2 HORE Sy o / | P s ] \ @ﬁsm T §\| m — | . Eu_,j: _____
5 SHF == \ - @m L—ii L £}
Z =t NP o0 3 /g == LY Hpo=s g 8 AOSPiTaL FIELDS OAD 5 Ox Closes
. $ path T T T e 45 i 52 =S TWOOP A% B
& pal- X s = Bl icars W z =Y.
55 FB 0 s 2 =73
. < e ERLAND SIREEL 0 ~ & \
Acomb Moor A Y = CHALFONTS SU ] Bridge Allot Gdns \S
Q A 7 o b 2 WMAPLE GROVE ¥ A Farm \
= ;oo <, = 2 5} E % . > \
= ;o Y 7 ENRiE L = D sports LA N A Heslingto N
5 7 K : 2
B /r§ o:"ll i &Y y’,:—-QSDN’S ARE REGTNALY N oo D Ground 1 N\ %
& S N & e E2 - o N % s ). «QFpo $ta
~ ol ;| % .
5 P oRARED // G I & \L D»LCE o ‘1| g s R\ g2 CROQ" LII;]:;_:;]E& 0\ 25, (.gock Flarm
. / 5 = WED) =} X hid ) ungalow
Turn Mire Gravel Hills /5 74 / 3 M 11m  Sports Ground b St '?% n AL
< = H—\U < YN :\ 4
XWOOD LANE o = t &
Gravel oy 1487 RL T Bka e Outgang Botland .
Hill ARRUP = AR < SEEEm o] A 3 S0 KD, ROAD - @ o Nl — P Farm  © arm Dunnington
ills i & L OURT ZounT AR <55 > % / 2\ P) WOOR e \ N OER . 2 Common o
) OSE A 7z NS ] ) XHTAE S Ox Closes { Grimston
E g év N ('*G/ P 5 &) B Cottages Grange
N Za # & K o) 3 e )
8 2 & r @ § = £ A Sports Ground N\ T 2 % 2\ % Grimston
Y 3 & v !
oL WALKER DAY % 5 MAVETE 5 > ) S ?@Q\ﬂ" 3 \ / Grange
Great = Z < VE — NS N
Knoll 3 e 5 7 15ch RO ¥ N
/s XA it - = Y Playing Field "\
= ] z Eais b\
< REDG = ST_HELEN'S RG45 W ADAD IEIC )
IShR WL TorE st < ! _ = o W
I ) iy i/ 2 \ of Qo ¥ /
Acomb Moor 3 S Sports y o 1 <
Ground R/ 5% 2] ) P 0 <9 [Spring Field Dunnington
~ - [ m,
e5ors, | 0 Knavesmire 2 Ry . Sports Ground N / Lodge
=) [oies) T =) \; 3 I I‘ T
(u] g | 3 2 Liby. | I
Moor Close o & S Ya/ TS “ i ki .l
b NT DR {Pé) @ .
g 4 N e
W B " 7 L
25, S ‘ Nunlings iy "\ ¥’ Till Mire
/3 A 5 u TS e 7 A
ath . > 7 .
On % YR P IS T i o 2 \ — I Dunnington
Nl = gy f | = =
SR = ok i 4 S = JENUE Grange Farm Common
<] N e O & \PH 53/ff Racing i I g - FRsTWAR!
N =~ S [ P Y/~ Stables t [y 3 !
N O Vo N /5 h‘\ L ==
\)
Acomb|Wood &5
205 ‘;\ {3 Prospect
) = = sy "
26 N !
b o i ¥ : East Moor 2\ Cottages 1
o, ~~ G\  Recreation School 3 == p '
A %"’o = % 5 - Ground = == ,a Woc
&, 3 5 S5 5 \a Farr
'/,
‘ < E N it R0l 3 Fulford / Grange Farm
=
{ &)
e 2 bas sz Loy 23 = //é/-\ a Waite's >
pblEln,” S " IS 1 Manor = Plantation Y
/ Moor Close & %, i . " ){\,:arm Swan,Jgt o= 4 & S
& S = %
, g ) & DG, Osbourne Oa 3 //
e = &l @) 5 House 3
Gl 7 S %
2 & 2 % 1 £43
1 A — _
_ e 2 - Ground  Sports -, Splanlglfelgld < 2 2 N
% 21% ! X7 TS Ground 7 Fu L&N,,“‘ = \ & 4
m - 24m o =, eH ol e A o E‘V =N P
\ /. SEEY Bany o 14m ) ey Qe §
N % ‘OSE s Bryan o )
¥ 2 v 8 View Coronation \
. 18m \& Mast Pynrioe
‘& L] H
& \ s /
\ I ! A { -
g ‘\- ¥ \
) ospice Qo i
. Eastfeld | 14m pi md‘\é\ - Middlethorpe Ings
= Farm A N EW
Council Boundar | L.
1 P -2 gwit
3 o 57 O Middlethorpe Common
2 &
A )
2 <. ) o
2 R Bm! Whin~
%) Ky \ uperstore T 40/74,”@9 N Covert 7
\ A i
! X DAL
BRYAN CP 2 3 ‘ Sr "
- 22 ER Burial {7\ 4 1) s Cooper's
rt ] I D ] t. = Ground §} __Y 7 / \ %Igﬁtaﬁon
Article 4 Direction 7 ¢4 o
,/’ e
- ,
B O d a r /Q Playing Fields ‘?ﬁ\ ) =
r l « REER"
p— u Jackson’s
- -~ P 5 NS =
y _ On = < ' X Topan 2 “‘ﬁ; Cornery {.s - 2
o . ath < " 7 ¢ \;2 Py e N
Do~ - Middlethorpe ¢ o P,,—Wh . Z 20 AN s s N
. Q EI Ings H ;‘Q _/—‘ e 7 LY. \‘ (. 7 = e \\\\ N [
§ o 1 SO . 7 .,.I_~~_ \ Ne> ‘% % Lodge Farm < RN X o x
[ BB | \ = D 0 { ] 50 s s ack - <7 4 N N Fulford Heath
A\ 7
Askham Bryan " D S \ A = \ Golf Course
Gree; =\ > . " \  Fulfard CZPS o5 \ \}{
WA _—7 " Gate (Track) Y - . N Court - TCP (AA) . N




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 25

5.46

547

5.48

s any necessary garden landscaping maintenance; and
» refuse and recycling facilities.

A further condition will be attached to any permission to ensure that the
accommodation remains occupied by students. Without such a condition it would be
necessary to consider the scheme for affordable housing given that there may be the
opportunity for non students to occupy the properties.

Whilst it is recognised that counting students can be difficult and student numbers
can vary depending on what source or definition is used, applicants should present a
proven need for student housing by providing an assessment of:

» existing and likely future student numbers and numbers requiring accommodation
taking into account the proportion of students who study from home

« areview of the current level of provision, including the level of vacancies and the
quality of accommodation

« the likely future supply of accommodation based on extant planning permissions

Only full time students should be included in the analysis. Part-time students should
be excluded based on the assumption that they are already housed for the duration
of their part-time studies.

Delivery
= Key Delivery Partners: Developers; and Further and Higher Education
Establishments.

+ Implementation: Planning applications

Policy H8: Houses in Multiple Occupation

Applications for the change of use from dwelling house (Use Class C3) to HMO (Use
Class C4 and Sui Generis) will only be permitted where:

it is in a neighbourhood area where less than 20% of properties are exempt from
paying council tax because they are entirely occupied by full time students,
recorded on the Council's database as a licensed HMO, benefit from C4/Sui
Generis HMO planning consent or are known to the Council to be HMOs; and

ii. lessthan 10% of properties within 100 metres of street length either side of the
application property are exempt from paying council tax because they are

111




549

5.50

5.51

Page 26

Y o ocal Fian - Fu on Urall, February

entirely occupied by full time students, recorded on the Council's database as a
licensed HMO, benefit from C4/Sui Generis HMO planning permission or are
known to the Council to be HMOs; and

iii. the accommodation provided is of a high standard which does not detrimentally
impact upon residential amenity.

See also Policy ENV2

Explanation

An evidence base exploring the spatial distribution and impact of Houses in Multiple
Occupation (HMOs), typically occupied by student households, indicates that it is
necessary to control the number of HMOs to ensure that communities do not
become imbalanced. This control is achieved through an Article 4 Direction, which
came into force on 20 April 2012. The Article 4 Direction removes permitted
development rights and requires a planning application to be submitted to change a
property into an HMO. Policy H8 and the Controlling the Concentration of HMOs
Supplementary Planning Document (2012, amended July 2014) (SPD) provide
guidance on how these planning applications will be determined. Under Policy H8,
HMO accommodation will continue to be provided to meet the city's housing needs
but the supply will be managed to avoid high concentrations of this use in an area.
Given York's compact nature and well connected public transport network it is
considered that the spreading out of HMOs to avoid unsustainable concentrations of
HMOs will still mean that for students in particular, HMOs will remain highly
accessible. A threshold based policy approach is considered most appropriate as
this tackles concentrations of HMOs and identifies a ‘tipping point’ when issues
arising from concentrations of HMOs become harder to manage and a community or
locality can be said to tip from balanced to unbalanced.

Whilst there is no formal definition of what constitutes a balanced community,
recently, there have been attempts to establish what constitutes a large HMO
proportion and the threshold at which a community can be said to befor becoming
imbalanced. Useful precedents have been set in a number of Authorities. For York,
through consultation, a threshold of 20% of all properties being HMOs across a
neighbourhood and 10% at street level have been established, following consultation
as the point at which a community can tip from balanced to unbalanced.

Under the threshold approach an assessment of the proportion of households that
are HMOs is undertaken within a given area. In assessing change of use planning
applications, to capture as many different types of shared accommodation as
possible the Council will use the following:

« council tax records - households made up entirely of students can seek
exemption from Council Tax and the address of each exempt property is held by
the Council. This applies to properties occupied only by one or more students
either as full time or term time accommodation. Properties falling within ‘Halls of
residence’ on campus will not be included, however some accommaodation
owned or managed by the universities off campus will included;

e licensed HMOs - records from the Council’'s Housing team of those properties
requiring an HMO licence will be utilised. These are those properties that are
three storeys or over and are occupied by five or more persons;



5.52

5.53

Page 27

+ properties benefiting from C4 or sui generis HMO planning consent — in addition
to those properties already identified as having HMO permission, where planning
permission is given for a change of use to C4 HMO or a certificate of lawful
development issued for existing HMOs this will be recorded in the future to build
up a clearer picture of HMO properties; and

+ properties known to the Council to be HMOs — this can be established through
site visits undertaken by the Council's Housing team in response to complaints
for example.

These data sets will be collated to calculate the proportion of shared households as
a percentage of all households. It is considered that these sources will provide the
best approach to identifying the numbers and location of HMOs in an area. Although
it is accepted that it may not be possible to identify all properties of this type. The
data will be analysed to avoid double counting, for example, identifying where a
property may be listed as a licensed HMO and have sui generis HMO planning
consent. Given that there are multiple data sources the HMO database will be
updated a number of times a year fo reflect these data sources. Accordingly, data
from the HMO licence register will be updated quarterly as and when the register is
updated, planning permission and certificate of lawful use permissions will be
updated monthly and Council Tax data will be updated annually, in May, to allow for
a complete picture of Council Tax returns. Additional properties that become known
to the Council will be added as and when they are confirmed to be HMOs. Updating
the HMO database in this way will allow for best picture of existing HMOs to be
known. City wide mapping will be made available online for information, however for
data protection reasons street level information collated in assessing a planning
application can not be made public.

In assessing planning applications for HMOs the Council will seek to ensure that the
change of use will not be detrimental to the overall residential amenity of the area. In
considering the impact on residential amenity attention will be given to whether the
applicant has demonstrated the following:

s the dwelling is large enough to accommodate an increased number of
residents®:
there is sufficient space for potential additional cars to park;
there is sufficient space for appropriate provision for secure cycle parking;
the condition of the property is of a high standard that contributes positively to
the character of the area and that the condition of the property will be maintained
following the change of use to HMO:

+ the increase in number of residents will not have an adverse impact on noise
levels and the level of amenity neighbouring residents can reasonably expect to
enjoy;

+ there is sufficient space for storage provision for waste/recycling containers in a
suitable enclosure area within the curtilage of the property; and

*Whilst planning powers cannot be used to enforce internal space slandards of existing dwellings and
the |evel of facilities to be provided, planning can be used to secure adequate living conditions in

dwellings in so far as they are affected by sunlight, daylight, outicok, privacy and noise. These factors
can impinge on the internal layout of dwellings, especially HMOs and will be taken into consideration.

113




5.54

5.55

5.56

Page 28

+ the change of use and increase in number of residents will not result in the loss
of front garden for hard standing for parking and refuse areas which would
detract from the existing street scene.

If flexibility to let a property to both family groups and shared tenants is sought an
application for a flexible C3/C4 use is recommended. This would allow continuous
occupation of a building as either a dwellinghouse for a family or an HMO for
unrelated tenants for a period of 10 years without the need for subsequent planning
applications. If the property is currently occupied as an HMO, and greater flexibility is
required, a planning permission would be required before the building can be used
flexibly for C3/C4 uses. Applications seeking a flexible permission will be assessed
against the provisions of Policy HB.

Further information can be found in the Controlling the Concentration of HMOs
Supplementary Planning Document (2012, amended July 2014).

Delivery
= Key Delivery Partners: City of York Council; and landlords.
* |mplementation: Planning applications.

Policy H9: Older Persons Specialist Housing

The City of York Council and its partners will work together to enable the delivery of
specialist (supported) housing and registered care housing for vulnerable people
including for the ageing population, such as exira-care accommodation.
Developments specifically designed to meet the accommodation needs of older
people will be supported where they:

i. contribute to meeting an identified need;

ii. are well designed to meet the particular requirements of residents with social,
physical, mental and/or health care needs; and

iii. are in an accessible location by public transport or within walking distance to a
range of community facilities including shops, medical services and public open
spaces or these are provided on-site.

Strategic sites (over Sha) should incorporate the appropriate provision of
accommodation types for older persons within their site masterplanning. For
sheltered/extra care accommodations a mix of tenures will be supported.

Where development falls within Use Class C3, affordable housing provision will be
required.

See also Policy H10

Explanation

The council is committed to meeting the specific housing needs of the aging
population and people with disabilities or additional mobility requirements. The City
of York has a population that is older than the national average, with a high
proportion of people aged 85 or over. As people live longer this trend is predicted to
continue with significant growth in the city's population aged over 85. The health of

114




	Agenda
	3 Called-in Item: Review of the "Controlling the Concentration of Houses in Multiple Occupation" Supplementary Planning Document 2012 (revised 2014) in response to the Council Motion of December 2021
	Annex A - Extract from Decision List
	Annex B - Report to Executive
	Annex B1 - Article 4 Direction Map
	Annex B2 Local Plan Extract Policy H8


